
NEBRASKA STATE RECORDS BOARD 
MEETING:  October 8, 1997 

Nebraska State Capitol 
Room 1507 
Lincoln, NE 

October 8, 1997 
10:00 A.M. 



SCOTT MOORE 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

SUITE 2300 CAPITOL BUILDING 
LINCOLN NEBRASKA 68509-4608 

PHONE (402) 471-2554 
FAX (402) 471 -3237 

sosadmin@sos.state.ne.us 

Sl'A1'JE OIF NIBJBJKA§OCA 
NEBRASKA STATE RECORDS BOARD

AGENDA 

1507 STATE CAPITOL 
OCTOBER 8, 1997 - I 0:00 A.M.

1. Call to Order, Roll Call
2. Adoption of minutes from August 29th meeting
3. Financial Statement
4. Review final RFP
5.  Suggested Addenda to RFP-DAS Purchasing
6. Vendor Questions from October 6th Meeting
7./Department of Motor Vehicles application for fee based services, 

registration records--Attomey General's Opinion
7. Miscellaneous Matters
8. Schedule Next Meeting
9. Adjournment

motor vehicle



• 

• 

• 

STATE RECORDS BOARD 

MINUTES 

Meeting of August 29, 1997 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Scott Moore at 9:06 A.M. on August 29, 1997, in 
Room 1507 of the State Capitol, Lincoln, Nebraska. 

The following board members were present: 
Scott Moore, Chairman; 
William Miller, representing the Director of Administrative Services; 
John Breslow: 
David Heineman; 
Jeanne Raznick; 
Terry Harder; 
Jeff Funk; 
Mark Sutko; 
Donald Stenberg; 
Yvonne Norton Leung, representing the Governor. 

Not present were: 
Craig Schroeder; 
John Dale. 

The minutes of the meeting of August 6, 1997, were considered. Ms. Norton Leung moved that 
the minutes be approved as circulated at this meeting; motion seconded by Mr. Heineman. 

Voting For: 

Voting Against: 

Absent: 

The motion carried. 

Breslow 
Miller 
Stenberg 

None 

Dale 

Funk 
Moore 
Sutko 

Schroeder 

Harder 
Norton Leung 

Heineman 
Raznick 

James A. Mastera, representing Cornhusker Bank and the Nebraska Bankers Association, presented 
public testimony regarding new services that bankers would like to see provided by the Nebrask@ Online 
network. 

Mr. Stenberg presented and discussed a Memorandum of Understanding developed in a meeting 
with Nebrask@ Interactive, Inc., regarding the continuation of operation of the network during a transition 
period after the end of the current network manager contract. This memorandum would establish a 
transition period from February l, 1998 through April 30, 1998 . 
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E. BENJAMIN NELSON

GOVERNOR 

�AWRENCE S. PRIMEAU 

DIRECTOR 

DATE:

TO: 

FROM:

D • A * S 

Department of Administrative Services

Memorandum 

October 3, 1997

Greg Lemon, Assistant Secretary of State and
Members of the State Records Board 

Barbara Lawson, Administrator � �-v'
DAS Materiel Division pa 

SUBJECT: Nebraska Online Network Manager Addendum

Specification changes that need to be included in the addendum for the Online RFP SCA0099
include: 

a) 

��@ 

ffl & 

0/i- & 

BL:rc 

Changing the date that the addendum will go out. This is scheduled for October 13th,
which is a State Holiday. 

References to Central Daylight Time (CDT), need to be changed to Central Standard Time
(CST), after October 26th, or just make a statement that all times refer to local time. 

Make the statement that after proposals are opened, the documents then become public
information and arc available for review in the State Purchasing office. 

Remind them that an authorized signature is required on the REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES form, and that this is a mandatory requirement. 

A Re-cap sheet will be available after the award has been made for vendor information.

Need to clarify - Are technical and Cost Proposals to be submitted in.s.oparate ef!Velopes?

Addition of language which would require that proposals be valid for 60 days from the
date of opening. 

cc: Bob Luth, Interim DAS Director

' 





SCOTT MOORE 

SECRETARY OF STATE 

SUITE 2300 CAPITOL BUILDING 
LINCOLN NEBRASKA 68509-4608 

PHONE (402) 471-2554 
FAX (402) 471-3237 

sosadmin@sos.state.ne.us 

DRAFT ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED AT MANDATORY 
PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE - SCA-0099 

( All answers subject to approval by the State Records Board) 
October 6, 1997 

1. What are the specifications for all databases and batch transfer interfaces currently in
use with Nebrask@Online, both for mainframe access and for applications housed on
Nebrask@Online's own web server? Please provide these complete specifications as they
are required to estimate the cost to duplicate the interface.

A single protocol or database does not exist, current agency databases 
include hut are not limited to :MVS, DB2, IMS, VSAM, VMISQLDS 
DB2-400 and Oracle. The current interfiace in use for communications is SNA 

"�¥ 2. What are the specifications for the current billing and reporting interfaces, including
L but not limited to credit card processing and other payment mechanisms? Please provide 

all of these specifications. 

Proprietary to the current Network Manager 

3. Are any Internet payment mechanisms being used (i.e., Cybercash)?

Not .,pecifica/ly Cybercash (within Nebrask@ Online) but credit card 
usage is provided for at this time. 

4. What are the current annual volumes of batch and individual requests for vehicle
records information?

900,000 + including 700, 000+ electronic; we assume this means drivers license 
records, motor vehicle records are not available on the network at this time 



5. What language(s) is the aflected transaction written in? I.E.: Command Level
COBOL, pseudo conversational?

State agencies do no/ use a single programming language, programming 
languages include, but are not limited to: COBOL, Assembler, C++ and RPG 

6. What is the current connectivity of the ES/9000 frames? This will determine the
number of circuits and gateways required to perform the transactions as described in the
proposal.

The Current Network manager uses a sin?;le dedicated 56KBPS direct 
connection into the ES9000 mainframe system 

7. Please detail the current configuration of the base installation supporting the present
Nebrask@Online system including communication lines and capacities.

Proprietary to the current Network Manager, some information on the .,ystem is 
available in the response to the initial RFP for network manager services (SCA 
0032) from the current network mana[!;er, which is public record and available 
from state purchasin[!;, for state l:Vl'tem see question # 1 above 

8. Please detail source and amount of all revenue for the last fiscal year for the
Nebrask@Online Network.

Gross Revenue to the network, 1996: $767,800; 89.4% Driver'.,· Record Batch; 
3.1% Drivers Record interactive; 4.3% Secretary of State Records (Corporate 
and UCC) 3.2% other 

9. Please detail all costs and expenses for the last fiscal year for the Nebrask@Online
Network.

1996 total cost $561,000, detail is not available 

10. Please provide a list of all current subscribers to the Nebrask@Online Network.

Current Subscriber.1/U�ers total 5771961 broken down inlo 66 user 
groups (i.e .. , Lawyers, Bankers. etc.) 

11. What is the ownership of web site content for all state agencies (with or without
lnteragency Agreements) listed in Attachment "A" that are hosted by Nebrask@Online?
Will all current web content (J711ges, database interfaces, order forms, and other custom
software) be transferred to a (the) new contrai:tor?

State agency websites data is owned by the agency contained therein would 
presumably he tramferred to the new Network Manager, unless the agency 



involved objected. However, web pages and functionalities developed by the 
current network manal{er would not he transferred. 

12. Will web sites and interfaces under development at the time of the transfer to the new
contractor be owned by the current contractor? Will the new contractor have access to
any work in progress, to avoid additional cost to the State of Nebraska and to avoid
implementation delays?

interfaces will be owned by 1he current Network Manager, for state agency 
websites see question /I.I I. 

dJ 

13. The contract with Nebraska@Interactive that was signed by the State of Nebraska in ,l{ . f-1_�_!
1995 included a statement that any contractor who subsequently provides Nebrask@ / ( I Online services would be able to/ have to pay a fixed amount to Nebraska@ Interactive z 4at11f 
for the use of the software that they had developed. Why is that option not detailed in this 
current Request Fo/r Proposal? 1 .(, ht , . c/, Jr,,.,• ,' .� '(,fu_ c,,t,(Ni{µT Kt,) �. .j {/1-), viJll �uJ...it ;.-.c.HA, t- ,, i,f'flP. ,. c{'�tl'V j The State Records Board chose only tii 'have thf use o

f 

software at �/J /- /llt 141\ 1/Y 1if r
theendo/thecontractint"rRFP 4{( ">€.c..f/e,�, '/,11 . . I, I. f',c_c.(J< Y;,((_/J�(f 1�,1 ,.�Ja.ttl 

 . 
14. During the previous Request For Proposal process to select a Network Manager for
Nebrask@Online, information was disclosed on the volume of batch and individual
requests for vehicle records information ... What are the specific reasons as to why that
information apparently is not available through Nebrask(i'iJOnJine'/

The information is provided in question #4. 

15. What are the current state charges, by record, for receiving motor vehicle records
either through a batch or an individual record request?

$3 per record (Neb. Rev. Stal.§ 60-483) $1.00 to State Record� Cash Fund 
to support the network $2. 00 to the slate, the charge is the same whether on a 
botch or individual basis 

16. Section 3 .1,4.1 of the current Request For Proposal states, "The state will allow reuse
of existing services where ever possible in accordance with existing agency practices."
What existing services are available for reuse (please provide detail on the specifics of
each service)?

The state will allow reuse of state resources currently in use by the Network 
Manager. These items include the 1-800 number, the use of the state's 800 
number rate, the termination of'a 56kbps data circuit at 501 South 14th Street, 
and the SNA termination interface equipment at the Central Data Processing 
location 





21. Who will own this system?

The Network Manager will own equipment and software necessary to run the 
network, as noted ohove. software will be owned hy the network manager with 
the state receiving license to use the software at the end of the contract period 

22. How are foes collected from patrons?

The Network Manager is responsible for collectingfees for all services rendered 
1hrough the network, current Network Manager bills monthly 

23. Who is responsible for collecting fees from patrons?

The Network Manager 

24. What payment will have to be made to each of the State Agencies for data that is
made available for a fee through Nebrask@ Online?

Under LB590 (Laws 1997) all electronic access fees go 10 the state records Board 
Cash Fund, individual agencies may have to be paid also depending on the 
interpretation of LB590 

25, Will there be a requirement to reimburse any or all of the State Agencies for the time 
their employees spend working with the winning bidder as the winning bidder develops 
new Nebrask@ Online interfaces to retrieve state data? 

No, this item can he negotiated with the agency the Network Manager signs an 
agreement with. Past practice has been no billing_from dala providing agencies 
but there is reimbursement to the stale central data processing and 
communications divisions for time spent setting up/providing access 

26. Is the incumbent contractor that is currently supporting the Nebrask@ Online
Network eligible to bid on this proposal?

Yes 

27. Can we receive a list of current hardware and software being operated?

Proprietary to the current Network Manager, some information on the system (as 
proposed) is available in the re.1ponse to the initial RFP Ji,r network manager 
services (SCA 0032) from the current network manager, which is puhlic record 
and available from state purchasing, 



28. What type of hardware and software (if any) will available to new contractor of the
Nebrask@ Online Network?

Network Manager will provide the hardware and software, they will have access 
to state communications items listed in question # 16 

29. Do you expect the contractor to purchase and own the network hardware and
software, or purchase it and turn it over to the state?

Hardware will be purchased/developed and owned by the Network Manager, 
software license will be granted to the stale upon termination of the contract 
period 

30. Should costs of phone lines and internet connectivity to support the Nebrask@ Online
Network be included in the proposal?

Yes, 1hese costs are the responsibility of the Network Manager 

31. Will there be costs incurred by the contractor for access to mainframe data?

Possibly, subject to negotiation between the Network Manager and individual 
data providing agencies 

\
/ / 132. Will the bidders financial statements be open to public viewing if bidder is not a

{�
V 

� 
publicly 

�
eld comp

-�
y?

. . . .
1 ·;- . ., ' �%euld he ,aemylea aspMJJI ,.,.a,y until !i �·0 11 ,ml n01 he; ca.used. 

33. Please clarify what is intended for submittal by initial bulleted sentence "application of
full life cycle ... ".

This item is requesting the vendor to describe projects you have worked on from 
. . 

beginning to end including the inilial requirements definition, analysis . 
. 1pecijication design, detail design, programming and implementation 1hrough 
final billing and turnover to the owner 

34. How many lines are currently in the modem pool?

Proprietary 

35. Will the network support service provided to State and local agencies be limited to
support dealing specifically with Nebrask@ Online issues? Ifno, please detail scope of
support.



Network support may include support outside of Nebrusk@ Online issues, hut 
such support is not a requirement of the contract 

36. Arc training services to be provided through remote access or will travel be requiredto provide training at users location?
Specifics of training will be up to the Network Manager, currently some of both 
types of training are provided, hut primarily remote 

37. Staff availability - define "on site"'.
Current Network Manager has s111.ff on the premises during regular business 
hours and staff on call 24 hours a day seven days a week, the state interprets this 
to meet the on-site requirement 

38. Ts a current load profile on data base requests available?
No, appendix B to the RF/' has some information on volume ,!f requests and 
screen hits, however 

39. What determines "viability"?savings be considered also?
Financial Returns 

Will it be based solely on financial returns or will cost 

P\ I 
40. ls it intended that Nebrask@ Online will act as an agent of other state departments to / , L.---supply revenue, (i.e. providing revenue to the department of motor vehicles for record transactions foes) or/and is Nebrask@ Online intended to be a revenue producing department? 

Nebrask@ Online '"'11Y vat created as a revenue producing 11gen1,it-.was created to 
allow electronic afcess to stale agency infi,rmation through a central gateway ht K

41. Will the Nebrask@ Online contractor be expected to pay a per record fee to accessexisting records?
Yes, current con1rac1s and stale law.for access to certain records are structured 
that way 

42. As outlined in attachment B (the table of statistical information), does networkinformation hits represent HTTP requests on the web site or some other number?









DON STENBERG 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

®£ fi:c.e of ±ly.e J\±±ortt.eij ®.en.er al 
2115 STATE CAPITOL BUILDING 

LINCOLN, NE 88509-892D 
(402) 4 71-2882

TDD (402) 471-2882 
CAPITOL FAX (402) 471-3297 

1235 K ST. FAX (402) 471-4725 

"'STATE OF NEBRASKA 
OFFICIAL 

OCT 7 1997 

DEPT, OF JUSTICE

October 7, 1997 

STEVE GRASZ 

LAURIE SMITH CAMP 

DEPUTY ATTORNEYS GENERAL 

[ffi� © � � i �[ill! 
OCT 71997 !I

S£CRETARY OF STATE 

1997 Neb. Laws LB 590; Amount 
Electronic Access to Public Records; 
Public Hearings on Such Fees 

of Fees for 
Necessity for 

REQUESTED BY: Scott Moore, Nebraska Secretary of State 
Chairman, State Records Board 

WRITTEN BY: Don Stenberg, Attorney General 
Dale A. Comer, Assistant Attorney General 

Under 1997 Neb. Laws LB 590, § 8, the State Records Board (the 
"Board") "may establish reasonable fees for electronic access to 
public records through the [electronic) gateway. " Under § 9 of 
that same bill, "[a]ny state agency desiring to enter into an 
agreement to or otherwise provide electronic access to public 
records through a gateway for a fee shall make a written request 
for approval to the board." As we understand it from the materials 
you provided to us, the Department of Motor Vehicles (the 
"Department") has recently presented the Board with a request to 
charge fees for electronic access to certain motor vehicle title 
registration and lien information involving both fees for batch 
processing of information requests and individual interactive 
searches. That request from the Department has prompted you to 
pose two questions to us, both of which are discussed below. 

1, Permissible Fees Under LB 590, 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 60-308 (Cum. Supp. 1996) deals with certain 
motor vehicle title records and provides, as is pertinent: 

David K MQ!'bum 
L. Jay Barnil 
J. Kirk BfQWn 
Oavid T. Bydill•k 
Dale A. Comer 
Suzanna GloV41r-Ettrich 
Royce N. Harper 
Lauren L. HIii 

Jay c. Hln111ey 
Nny Hollenbeck 
WilllM'I L. Howland 
Mafllyn B. Hutctirl1011 
Kimberfy A. Kli!tln 
Jl!ll'll'lifM S. LUl8dahl 
Jo5!!phP.Loudon 

Cl'larll!laf:.� 
I.IH 0. M&ftin-Pti!:9 
Lyrin A. Melaon 
Rcnald 0. MCJfll'o'K 
F�ridl.F. Neid 
Malilfl C. Pawal 
K.,nl'll!llh W. Payne 

P'•ul N, Potadle 
M111kD.� 
01111r11111 Hulhetat\aW Rl11!.o 
H�B. R� 
JamH D, Smitt't 
JamH H. S9*111ta 
MarkD. St..JT 

Martin SWan-lQn 
D111111id R. TIIINln, Jr, 
TJTlcU,y J. Tex91 
John R. Thompton 
B111TYW.id 
T•rriM, Wffk1 
M•lani• J. W\memc;n-M8frt.tlo1 
Lind� L, Vv'ilh!llr<l 













October lO, 1997 

Addendum #1 to: Stale of Nebraska 
Request for Proposal 
SCA-0099 
Nebraska Online Network Design, 
Installation Management and Operations 

This is Addendum 1 to SCA-0099, please make the following changes to the State of
N chraska Request for Proposal SCA-0099: 

Page 13, Sections 2.2. Item 5. 
pm. CST Central Standard Tjmc".

Change the time from "2:00 p.m. CDT" h, "2·00 

�l.t,L#i 
Page 19, Section 2.10.1. 4th Paragraph. 

· cf o s a d the financial ro os 
sentence: "'Technical 

ed witmn the sa 
cnye!ope or package to be opened only by Jhc State Purchasin(l Bureau in acoordam;c wjth
Section 2.10.1." 

Page 20, Section 2.10.2. Add the following sentence: "Aftq proposals are opened, 
the documents then become public information and arc avai)abk for review in the
StatcPurcha�inw Ofl]{ie.'' 

Page 27, Section 3.1.1. 6th buDet point. Change number of days from "one 
hundred eighty (180)" t<> "sixty (60) ."

All pokntial contractors are reminded that an authqrjzed sj 1o1Jature is required on the 
Rc!juest for Proposal for Contractual Seryjccs fonn. This is a mandatory requirement.

All potential c<>ntract<,rs are asked to acknowledge receipt <>fthis Addendum # I to 
SCA-0099 in their pr<>p<>sal transmittal letter. 

Attached are the responses t<, the questions regarding the Request for Prnposal SCA-
0099. These questions were asked during the written question time period and during the pre­
proposal meeting held Odoher 6, 1997.



















STATE OF NEBRASKA 
DEPARTMENT Of MOTOR VEHICL£S 
Alvin Abramwn 
Director 

September 25, 1997 

Scott Moore 
Chairman 
State Records Board 
Suite 2300 
State Capitol 
HAND DELIVERED 

·,

E. Benjamin Nelson
Governor 

RE: REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO ESTABLISH ACCESS TO NEBRASKA 
VEHICLE AND TITLE RECORDS ON-LINE AND TO SET A FEE FOR ELECTRONIC 

ACCESS 

Dear Chairman Moore: 

This letter is to request approval of the State Records Board to establish access to Nebraska 
vehicle and title records on-line and to set a fee. This request is being made pursuant to Neb Rev. 
Stat.. 84-1205.02 which authorizes the Board to establish reasonable fees for electronic access an 
pursuant to Neb.Rev. Stat. 84-1205.03 which requires any state agency to provide electronic 
access to records for a fee to make a written request to the Board. 

Currently, the Department of Motor Vehicles provides driver record information on-line through 
an Interagency Agreement between the Department and the State Records Board. I am requesting 
the Board's approval to modify the Agreement to allow access to vehicle title and registration 
records and to establish fees for that access. 

There are significant advantages to having vehicle and title registration records on line. Currently, 
under Neb.Rev.Stat. 60-308, the Department provides vehicle title and registration records at a 
fee of$1.00 per individual record or $12.00 per thousand records for an extract of the entire file. 
Last session, the Legislature passed LB 635, the Uniform Motor Vehicle Records Disclosure Act, 
which went into effect Sept. 13, 1997 and which has resulted in an increase in the number and 
type of requests for these records made to the Department. 

Prior to LB635, many commercial entities, such as banks, financial institutions and credit bureaus, 
directed requests for vehicle title, lien and registration information for multiple vehicle listings 

301 Centennial Meill South • P.O. Box 94789 • Lincoln, Nebrtat;kt/i 68509·4789 • Phone (402) 471-2281 • TDD (402) 471-4154 (Heming Impaired.)

1/VOOE VP-

An F.q1,1�I Oppommity/Affirm1Jti11e Action E."mp/o_ver 
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SAVE llVES.' 













(b) Public records and-proposed subscriber fees.

Addendum Number One to the Interagency Agreement 
between the 

Nebraska State Records Board 
and the 

Department of Motor Vehicles 

This Addendum Number One to lhe Inreragency Agreemenr between the Nebraska State Records Board 
and th,i: Depmmenr of Motor Vehicles SetS forth e=rtain services provi&d by the Department of Motor 
Vehicles other than those listed in Amendment #1 to Addendum #1 to Contract Dated January 26. 1995 
betwe,,n Nebraska Library Commission and Nebrask@ Interactive, Inc., which of !hose services (including 
new services) will be provided by Nebrask@ Online. lhe prices to be chacged for such Ncbrask@ Onlin;: 
serviccs, md how the revenue ftmn such Nebrask@ Online rervices is to be divid?:d between Nebrask@ 
Online(NOL) and the Department of Motor V ebicles(DMV). 

Thi� Addendum Number One coveu both wtcractive, extract and special request processing services, of 
which the extr;u;t and special request services are cum:ntly provided by the Depan:tm;nt of Motor Vehic�. 

Data Records to be Accessed

SERVlCE 

Title, RegistrJ.tion and Lit:n Search: 
In�tive(:ach) 
Extract(complete file/per 1,000) 
Special .Requesrs(va.rious criteria): 

Initial Set Up/Programming 
First Run 

Successive Runs/No Set Up: 

PRICE 

$ 2.00 S 
$ 12.00* $ 

$ 55.00-500.00 $ 
$ 24.00 $ 

OMV 

1.00* 
12.00 

NIA 

9.60 

Minimum(2,000 records)$ 24.00 $ 9.60 
Over 2000 records $ 12.0011,000 s 4_g011,ooo 

NOL** 

S LOO 
$ NIA 

$ 55.00-500.00 
$ 14.40 

S 14.40 
$ 7.20/1,000 

"'These prices currently exist in statote(Sl.00 & $12.00) or are currently charg,:d.($55.00-500.00). 
**The monies to go to NOL wi11 flow through the NSRB Cash Fund for accounting purposes. 

Special :-.otation: The netwrnk(NOL) will pay the CDP com(CPU) associated with providing the 
above listed services, e:1c.ept for the Extract. which will remain with OMV. 

The above and foregoing a.re acceptable to the Nebraska State Records Board-and the Departmo,nt of Motor 
Vehicle:;, and sh.all remain in effect subject to the tenns of the Interagency Agreement betw(:C[l these two 
agenci�/bo.irds pc,rtaining to Nebraslc@ Online, or until subsequently modified in writing signed by a.n 
authorized representative of both parties. 

Nebra�ka Stare R=rds Board: 

by ________ _ Dated, ____ _ 

Depamnem of Motor V ehiclcs 

by ________ _ Dated, ____ _ 
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